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Request for proposals – Australian Securities and Investments 
Commission (ASIC) default superannuation fund 
ASIC is seeking proposals from trustees of complying superannuation funds to be the default 
superannuation fund for its employees.  

Proposals are due by Friday 8 February 2019. 

The Public Sector Superannuation accumulation plan (PSSap) is the current default 
superannuation fund for ASIC employees. This arrangement expires on 30 June 2019 when 
ASIC moves outside coverage of the Public Service Act 1999. 

The default superannuation fund exists to accept ASIC’s employer superannuation 
contributions, where an employee has not nominated a superannuation fund. The new default 
fund arrangements will apply to new employees from 1 July 2019 onwards.  

As an indicator of historical activity, the table below provides details from the last three financial 
years of the number of new employees who joined the current default fund. These figures are 
for indicative purposes only and do not represent any commitment to ongoing member 
commencements. 

 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 

Number of new employees joining the 
default fund  

140 154 134 

What we are looking for  
We are seeking proposals from trustees of regulated superannuation funds to become the 
default superannuation fund for ASIC employees who do not nominate their own fund. The 
default superannuation fund will be a Registrable Superannuation Entity licensee and will offer: 

• an APRA approved MySuper product 

• superior member services 

• highly competitive fees and investment returns 

• account based retirement products 

• financial advice services 

• sustainable economies of scale 

• insurance products 

• a strong cultural fit with ASIC 
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Attachments 
This paper and its attachments have been prepared to assist ASIC to undertake the selection 
process.  

Attached to this paper are: 

• Fund Selection Process (Attachment A) 

• Response Schedule, together with Comments on the Response Schedule 
(Attachments B and C) 

 In order to be considered, proposals must address six selection criteria. These are outlined 
and explained in Attachment C. 

Clarification 
If you require any clarification around the Response Schedule or what is being asked, please 
contact Michael Woods on 02 9911 2635 or at michael.woods@asic.gov.au.  

Proposal content 
Proposals must address the selection criteria set out in the Response Schedule. 

It is a strong preference that proposals respond to the selection criteria in the same order that 
they are set out in the Response Schedule. Proposals can cross reference other parts of the 
response if this is relevant and appropriate. 

If a proposal refers to external documents (such as an insurance product disclosure statement) 
then a copy of that document must be provided, together with instructions as to which part of 
that external document is being relied upon. 

How to submit proposals  
Please send an electronic copy to: michael.woods@asic.gov.au. 

Deadline for providing proposals 
To be eligible for consideration, proposals must be received by 5pm (AEDT) on Friday 
8 February 2019. 

  

mailto:michael.woods@asic.gov.au
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Attachment A 

Fund selection process  
The Senior Executive Leader – People and Development is responsible for selecting the default 
superannuation fund for choice-of-fund employees. The selection process will be informed by 
an evaluation panel who will evaluate the proposals of nominating trustees, and will also involve 
an interview process. 

Evaluation 
The completed Response Schedule and your fund’s proposal will form a key component of the 
evaluation process. All complying proposals will be assessed and a shortlist will be compiled. 
Interviews will be called with shortlisted respondents. One respondent will be recommended to 
the Senior Executive Leader – People and Development for appointment as the default 
superannuation fund.   

Interviews 
Interviews will be undertaken via video conference, with short-listed respondents expected to 
attend the ASIC office in their home capital city. 

Expected timeline for selection  
• Request for proposals issued (21 December 2018) 

• Proposals due to ASIC (8 February 2019)  

• Default fund shortlisting process (1 March 2019) 

• Interviews with shortlisted funds (4 March to 15 March 2019) 

• Senior Executive Leader – People and Development decides on the new default 
fund (22 March 2019) 

• Notification to default fund (29 March 2019) 

• Selected fund to commence as default fund from 1 July 2019 

Review of default fund arrangements 
It is ASIC’s intention to review its default fund arrangements every four years. 
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Attachment B 

Response schedule 
1 Fund overview 

1.1 State the respondent’s full name. 

1.2 State the name of the fund and its Unique Superannuation Identifier (the fund). 

1.3 Provide a brief CV for both the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Investment 
Officer. 

1.4 Describe the process for the appointment of a Trustee to the fund. 

1.5 Detail the qualifications required of a Trustee to the fund (or to the Trustee’s board). 

1.6 Provide the names of current Trustees (or board members) and a brief CV for 
each. 

1.7 Detail the purpose of all governance committees and sub-committees in the fund. 

1.8 Detail the process for making investment decisions in the fund. 

1.9 Please explain how the respondent adds value to members compared to other 
trustees. 

1.10 Detail the complaint and appeal procedures available to members of the fund. 
What is the median time taken to resolve complaints in the last 12 months? 

1.11 Detail any affiliations or associations that the fund has with other organisations. 

1.12 List all material outsourcing arrangements used by the fund or its Trustee. 

1.13 Does the fund exercise voting rights over the shares it holds? 

1.14 If voting rights are exercised, detail the voting process. 

1.15 It is ASIC's intention to retain its current clearing house arrangement with the CSC. 
Is there a requirement to use the funds clearing house? 

1.16 For contributions received close to year-end cut-off, how does the fund determine 
which contribution year they are allocated to? 

1.17 Provide a copy of the fund’s corporate and social responsibility policies and 
statements, including detailing how and whether these are used to inform 
investment decisions. 

1.18 Does the fund exclude any classes or groups of investments within its default 
MySuper offering? eg tobacco manufacturers. 

1.19 Advise whether the fund, or their investment managers, utilise tax investment 
vehicles domiciled in no tax and/or low tax jurisdictions, and if so, what are the 
practical and strategic reasons for doing so, including the impact that this has on 
the tax ultimately paid in Australia and elsewhere. 
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1.20 What is the investment product and option in which the respondent proposes new 
ASIC employee members would be invested (the default option)? 

1.21 Is the default option a MySuper product? 

1.22 Provide details of what the respondent considers to be the default option’s growth 
to defensive asset ratio (e.g. 75/25). 

1.23 Provide detail on the asset allocation of the default option, broken down as follows, 
as at 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016, 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2018: 

Growth assets 

• Australian shares 
• International shares 
• Direct property (growth) 
• Infrastructure (growth) 
• Private equity 
• Other growth assets 

Defensive assets 

• Direct property (defensive) 
• Infrastructure (defensive) 
• Credit 
• Fixed interest 
• Cash 
• Other defensive assets 

1.24 Is the default option a balanced fund or lifecycle strategy product? Why has your 
fund chosen this approach? 

1.25 If a lifecycle strategy product is proposed as the default option, please explain fully 
how this will operate. 

1.26 What is the default option’s target rate of return, and was this objective achieved 
as at 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016, 30 June 2017 and 
30 June 2018? 

1.28 Noting that investment circumstances change and trade-offs between risk and 
potential reward are made all the time, it is important for there to be a basis for 
those trade-offs. Accordingly, please explain how the respondent balances the 
default option’s risk versus return as well as the rationale and basis behind that 
position. 

2 Total fees for the MySuper default product 

2.1 What is the average of total fees paid for members in a MySuper product in 
2016/17 and 2017/18? 

2.2 What are the current total annual fees for a $50,000 balance in the MySuper 
option? 

2.3 What are the current total annual fees for a $100,000 balance in the MySuper 
option? 

2.4 Does the fund offer account based pensions and/or transition to retirement 
pensions? 
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2.5 Provide full details of the fees charged by the respondent for establishing and 
maintaining an account based pension, including how these are calculated. 

2.6 Provide full details of the fees charged by the respondent for establishing and 
maintaining a transition to retirement pension, including how these are calculated. 

2.7 Does the fund offer a retirement bonus when moving from accumulation phase to 
pension phase? If so, how is this amount calculated? 

2.8 Detail whether the conditions, benefits and fees stated by the respondent in this 
response schedule are different to those currently offered to ASIC employees who 
are already members of your fund. 

2.9 Detail whether the conditions, benefits and fees stated by the respondent in this 
response schedule will be transferred with the employee if they leave ASIC 
employment. 

2.10 Detail whether the conditions, benefits and fees stated by the respondent in this 
response schedule will be available to existing employees who decide to join the 
fund after 1 July 2019? 

2.11 Does the fund expect to make any changes to fees or charges over the next three 
years? If so please detail what those changes may be, anticipated timing and the 
rationale for them. 

2.12 Detail any employer costs associated with submitting payments or data. Include 
any fees for using your funds clearing house if this is mandatory. 

3 Investment capabilities and past performance 

3.1 In relation to fund’s competitive advantage around its investment philosophy and 
approach, and around managing investment risk, provide details of any 
capabilities, systems and processes the fund has that other investors either do not 
have or cannot readily duplicate. 

3.2 Provide the annual percentage return after fees and taxes as at 30 June 2018 for 
the default investment option (for a member aged 40). 

3.3 Provide the percentage return after fees and taxes for the 2 years to 30 June 2018 
for the default investment option (for a member aged 40). 

3.4 Provide the percentage return after fees and taxes for the 3 years to 30 June 2018 
for the default investment option (for a member aged 40). 

3.5 Provide the percentage return after fees and taxes for the 5 years to 30 June 2018 
for the default investment option (for a member aged 40). 

3.6 Provide the percentage return after fees and taxes for the 10 years to 30 June 
2018 for the default investment option (for a member aged 40). 

4 Insurance coverage and fees 

4.1 Who underwrites your insurance (if not underwritten internally)? 
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4.2 For ASIC employees who choose to opt in for insurance, detail the insurance types 
that will be offered to them, as well as the level of cover, exclusions, fees and 
premiums for that insurance. 

4.3 Can the member increase their level of insurance cover without undergoing a 
medical assessment? If so, what are the automatic acceptance levels? 

4.4 What insurance risk classification would apply to ASIC staff? 

4.5 Is this the lowest risk classification used by the underwriter? 

4.6 Detail whether the conditions, benefits and fees of this insurance are different to 
those currently offered to ASIC employees who are already members of your fund. 

4.7 In the past 2 years, have any of the funds employees received benefits in kind from 
the insurance underwriter (such as corporate hospitality). 

5 Member services 

5.1 Provide a complete list of the services available to members online, including: 

• the ability of members to view personal information 
• the availability of fund level information 
• the ability of members to transact 
• any interactive tools and calculators 

and explain which of these services are available on a website versus mobile 
application. 

5.2 Are there any services members cannot undertake online? (if so, explain what 
these are) 

5.3 What forms of EFT remittance or deposits are available? 

5.4 On average how long does the fund take to process an investment switch? 

5.5 On average how long does the fund take to process the transfer of a member’s 
superannuation benefit to another fund? 

5.6 On average how long does the fund take to process a withdrawal request from a 
member account? 

5.7 On average how long does the fund take to process a FHSSS request from the 
ATO? 
 

5.8 Is the fund fully compliant with SuperStream requirements? 

5.9 What is the processing time for acceptance and lodgement of employee data and 
contributions? 

5.10 How long does it take the fund to advise new members of their membership 
details? 

5.11 Does the respondent offer financial advice services to members? 

5.12 If yes to 5.11: 

• What is the cost of these services, and how is this charged? 



Request for Proposals – Australian Securities and Investments Commission - Default Superannuation Fund  
 

21 December 2018 Australian Securities and Investments Commission |  8 

• Are the services provided by staff within the fund, or by external advisors 
(and, if so, by whom and how are they selected)? 

• Where are the advisors located? 
• How will advice be delivered to members located in the Traralgon office 

(e.g. face-to-face, online, via telephone)?  
• Is the advice confined to superannuation, or is broader investment and 

financial planning advice provided? 

Is there anything else about these services that you would like to highlight (e.g. 
innovative models for providing advice using new technology to reduce costs)? 

5.13 Does the fund use a call centre to deal with member enquiries? 

5.14 If a call centre is used: 

• Provide details of the service level agreement and service standards. 
• State whether this is an in-house or outsourced facility, and where it is 

located. 
• What are the operating hours? 

5.15 What resources do you provide to members to help them plan for their retirement, 
throughout the different stages of their career and life, and what are the costs to 
members of accessing those resources? 

5.16 What services are offered to assist members in navigating their successful ageing 
process, in terms of physical, financial, mental, social, emotional transitions? (and 
what are the costs of those services?) 

5.17 How does the trustee communicate to members looking to leave their fund and 
start an SMSF? What messages does the trustee communicate and how? 

5.18 How does the trustee act and communicate with members if the trustee thinks a 
member may be being targeted by an early release scam? How does the trustee 
report on this? 

5.19 Provide a link to the fund’s website, member portal (so we can access info and 
resources members can) and mobile app so we can experience everything a 
member does. 

5.20 List all types of communication with members including frequency, including a link 
to their MySuper product dashboard. 

5.21 Does your fund provide a member direct investment option so members can 
manage their own investments, such as shares and ETFs? If so, explain how that 
works and how you communicate the risks and benefits to members. 

5.22 Does the fund allow contribution splitting and if so is this available online? 

6 Culture and innovation 

6.1 What are the values of your organisation? 

6.2 How does having the responsibility for looking after 'other people’s money' 
permeate the culture of your fund? 

6.3 How does your fund strike the right balance between member returns and 
expenditure on corporate hospitality, corporate promotion and external 
sponsorship? 
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6.4 How does your fund manage potential conflicts of interest when members funds 
are invested as part of a vertically integrated business? 

6.5 What initiatives have you implemented in the last 12 months to help fund members 
to engage with their own superannuation? 

6.6 What initiatives have you implemented in the last 12 months to help your own staff 
to engage with their own superannuation? 

6.7 Provide any other comments or information that you consider will support the 
fund’s proposal. 
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Attachment C 

Comments on response schedule 
In order to assist respondents in completing the response schedule, the following comments 
are provided. 

Weighting and mandatory requirements 
The six sections in the response schedule, and the weightings allocated to them, is as follows: 

• Fund overview – 10% 
• Total fees for the MySuper default product – 20% 
• Investment capabilities and past performance – 30% 
• Insurance coverage and fees – 15% 
• Member services – 15% 
• Culture and innovation – 10% 

Despite these weightings, if a response does not satisfy a mandatory requirement (outlined 
below) then it will likely be excluded from consideration unless there are compelling reasons to 
the contrary. Decisions to exclude or not exclude a proposal will be made at the evaluation 
panel’s absolute discretion. 

Fund Overview 
To be considered, the fund needs to offer an APRA approved MySuper product.  

To be considered, it is a mandatory requirement for the default fund to either: have member 
assets under management of at least $10 billion, or can demonstrate the ability to reach this 
threshold by 30 June 2021. Smaller funds will not be considered. 

As a financial services regulator, ASIC expects funds to be fully compliant with the preservation 
requirements within the Superannuation Industry (Supervision) Act 1993 and its regulations. 
This includes having and following robust approval and review processes and procedures in 
order to ensure that superannuation is not incorrectly released. 

Total fees for the MySuper default product 
Proposals must provide detail regarding fees for the proposed default investment option. 
Proposals will also need to outline whether fees are different to those currently offered to ASIC 
employees who are already members of your fund.  

Investment capability and past performance 
Empirical information regarding the past performance of the proposed default option will be 
referenced against APRA MySuper statistics. Proposals will need to outline the fund’s 
investment philosophy and approach to managing risk, as well as how and whether the fund 
considers that its capabilities, systems and processes provide it with a competitive advantage 
in this area. 

Insurance coverage and fees 
To be considered, it is a mandatory requirement that the selected fund is able to provide new 
ASIC employees with TPD, death and income protection insurance cover. Proposals should 
outline whether insurance is offered on an opt-in or opt-out basis and whether different rules 
apply to different classes of members (eg opt in for members under age 25). 

Member services 
Proposals should detail the services provided to members online, via applications and via other 
mediums. If respondents are able to provide financial advice for members, then the cost of that 
advice, who provides it, what it can cover and how it is delivered all need to be detailed. 
Proposals should outline the complaints handling process and the median time taken to resolve 
complaints in the last 12 months. 
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Culture and innovation 
As a financial services regulator, ASIC expects funds to be fully compliant with both the letter 
and spirit of the law. That means that funds with significant APRA/ASIC compliance issues will 
not be considered.  

The degree of alignment with ASIC values will be assessed. This will include recent innovations 
that have assisted fund members to engage with their own superannuation. 
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